
MINUTES 
LAKE COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

March 4, 2020 

The Lake County Planning and Zoning Board met on Wednesday, March 4, 2020, in County 
Commission Chambers on the second floor of the Lake County Administration Building to 
consider petitions for rezoning requests. 

The recommendations of the Lake County Planning and Zoning Board will be transmitted to 
the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for their public hearing to be held on Tuesday, 
March 24, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. in the County Commission Chambers on the second floor or the 
County Administration Building, Tavares, Florida. 

Members Present: 
Sandy Gamble, Chairman School Board Representative 
Kathryn McKeeby, Secretary District 1 
Laura Jones Smith District 2 
Tim Morris, Vice-Chairman District 3 
Rick Gonzalez District 4 
Cori Todd District 5 
Jim Hamilton At-Large Representative 

Members Not Present: 
Donald Heaton Ex-Officio Non-Voting Military 

Staff Present: 
Tim McClendon, AICP, Director, Office of Planning & Zoning 
Steve Greene, AICP, Chief Planner, Office of Planning & Zoning 
Emily Johnson, Planner, Office of Planning and Zoning 
Donna Bohrer, Office Associate, Office of Planning & Zoning 
Josh Pearson, Deputy Clerk, Board Support 

Chairman Sandy Gamble called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m., noted that a quorum was 
present, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. He remarked that the Lake County Planning and 
Zoning Board was an advisory board to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) and that 
this Board was responsible for reviewing proposed changes to the Lake . County 
Comprehensive Plan (Comp Plan), zoning, conditional uses, mining site plans, and making 
recommendations, on these applications to the BCC. He stated that the Board's 
recommendations would be sent to the BCC for their consideration at a scheduled public 
hearing and that the cases presented today were scheduled for the March 24, 2020 BCC 
meeting at 9:00 a.m. 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 2 of22 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Agenda Update 

Consideration of Minutes: February 5, 2020 

Public Comment 

CONSENT AGENDA 

TAB NO: CASE NO: OWNER/APPLICANT/PROJECT 

Tab 1 CUP-19-14-1 Gulfstream Towers FL-187 SR 33, CR 561 
CUP 

Tab2 RZ-19-30-4 Sutherlin Property Rezoning 

Tab3 RZ-19-31-2 Beebe Property Rezoning 

Tab4 RZ-19-20-3 Molokai Co-Op MHP Rezoning 

Tab5 CUP-19-16-1 SaveaFox Sanctuary CUP 

REGULAR AGENDA 

TAB NO: CASE NO: OWNER/ APPLICANT/PROJECT 

Tab6 RZ-19-29-5 Create Conservatory/Sawyer Rezoning 

Other Business 

Adjournment 

AGENDA UPDATES 

Mr. Steve Greene, Chief Planner, Office of Planning and Zoning said that there were no 
changes to the agenda at this time. 

Mr. Sandy Gamble indicated that he had received comment cards for Tabs 4 and 5; therefore, 
they would be pulled to the regular agenda. 

Ms. Laura Jones Smith asked to pull Tab 3 to the regular agenda. 

2 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 3 of22 

MINUTES 

MOTION by Tim Morris, SECONDED by Jim Hamilton to APPROVE the Minutes of 
February 5, 2020 of the Lake County Planning and Zoning Board meeting, as submitted. 

FOR: Gamble, McKeeby, Jones Smith, Morris, Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton 

AGAINST: None 

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No one wished to address the Board at this time. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

TAB NO: CASE NO: OWNER/APPLICANT/PROJECT 

Tab 1 CUP-19-14-1 Gulfstream Towers FL-187 SR 33, CR 561 
CUP 

Tab2 RZ-19-30-4 Sutherlin Property Rezoning 

MOTION by Tim Morris, SECONDED by Rick Gonzalez to APPROVE the Consent 
Agenda, Tabs 1 and 2, as presented, pulling Tabs 3, 4 and 5 to the Regular Agenda. 

FOR: Gamble, McKeeby, Jones Smith, Morris, Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton 

AGAINST: None 

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0 

REGULAR AGENDA 

Tab 3 - BEEBE PROPERTY REZONING 

Mr. Greene stated that the cases had been advertised in accordance with the law. 

Ms. Emily Johnson, Planner, Office of Planning and Zoning, presented Tab 3. She explained 
that the property was located north of Hunt Trace Boulevard and south of Jacks Lake in the 
City of Clermont area. She said that the property was about seven net acres in size, or 7.75 

3 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 4 of22 

acres with wetlands, and the applicant was requesting to rezone approximately 7.75 acres 
from Agriculture to Planned Unit Development (PUD) for an age-restricted multifamily 
housing development to include a waiver request for the PUD acreage requirement. She 
displayed the zoning and future land use (FLU) maps for the property, along with the concept 
plan. She then relayed these staff analysis findings: the application included a request to the 
BCC to consider a waiver to the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), Section 4.03.03 
which stated that a PUD must contain a minimum of 10 acres; the rezoning application was 
consistent with the purpose and intent of the PUD zoning district allowed by LDRs Section 
4.03.00, with the exception of the aforementioned 10 acre minimum requirement; the request 
was consistent with Comp Plan Policy I-1.3.3, Urban Medium Density Future Land Use 
Category, which allowed a maximum density of seven dwelling units per one net buildable 
acre; and the request was consistent with Comp Plan Policy I-7.8.1, Requirements for Planned 
Unit Developments, which stated that density shall not exceed the underlying FLU category 
and that a PUD shall be accompanied by a conceptual plan. She concluded that staff had 
found the application to be consistent with the LDRs and the Comp Plan. 

Ms. Jones Smith pointed out that this request was in the City of Clermont joint planning area 
(JP A) and she relayed her understanding that the City had not provided any information 
indicating that they would provide central water and sewer. 

Ms. Johnson clarified that the City was contacted but that they had no comments. She added 
that the area's central water and sewer was served by the City of Clermont and that the 
surrounding properties were annexed by the City. 

Ms. Jones Smith asked why the Planning and Zoning Board would be providing them a waiver 
to build a PUD on a property that had less acreage than required when the property would be 
receiving services from the City of Clermont and ultimately would annex for sewer and water 
service. She wondered why the applicant was not approaching the City of Clermont to build 
this project. 

Mr. Steve Smith, representing the applicant, explained that the City currently had a 
moratorium and was not approving any permits to build multifamily housing. 

Ms. Jones Smith asked why this had occurred. 

Mr. Smith said that the City was trying to rewrite their statutes to ensure that the luxury 
apartments being built in the community included affordable housing units. He noted that the 
proposed development would be for low income seniors. 

Ms. Jones Smith asked if the moratorium was exclusive to development permits. 

Mr. Smith stated that it was for development and construction permits. 

Ms. Jones Smith inquired to confirm that the City would not consider their annexation, and 
Mr. Smith indicated that this was correct at this time but that the City agreed to provide water 

4 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 5 of22 

and sewer. Ms. Jones Smith then asked when this moratorium took effect. 

Mr. Smith replied that it took effect in October 2019. He felt that there was a significant need 
for workforce housing and senior housing, and said that the State was providing money for 
communities that recognized the need to build apartments for people in a lower income 
bracket. 

Ms. Kathryn McKeeby asked to confirm that this was affordable housing. 

Mr. Smith confirmed this and stated that it was for 60 percent of the equated monthly income 
(EMI), and the EMI in Lake County was currently about $53,000. He elaborated that 
individuals making less than $30,000 would be qualified to live in this development. He also 
said that the age limit was 60 and higher. 

Ms. Jones Smith observed that the concept plan was referred to as phase two. 

Mr. Smith explained that they were also developing the adjacent property for seniors and that 
it was currently under construction; furthermore, he felt that the subject development would 
blend in with the community next door. 

Ms. Jones Smith asked to confirm that the City would still not consider this application even 
though they were also developing on the adjacent site. 

Mr. Smith confirmed this and commented that the Clermont City Attorney had indicated that 
they could not waive the moratorium. He relayed his understanding that the project met all 
of the zoning requirements and opined that there was nothing unusual about it. 

Ms. McKeeby expressed a concern for the waiver request. She also questioned how many 
units and acres they had on the adjacent property. 

Mr. Smith opined that the property fit in with the community and noted that there would be 
seniors next door. He said that for the adjacent development, there were six acres with 72 
units due to the city's zoning allowing 12 units per acre. 

Mr. Tim Morris asked if the residents had access to a nearby lake. 

Mr. Smith confirmed this. He thought that the greater good had to be considered with regards 
to the waiver, and he felt that there was a significant need for housing for low income families. 
He reiterated that the State had funding for communities that recognized this need and were 
willing to approve developments to address it. He asked the Board to recognize this need and 
reiterated that the development would fit in the community. He mentioned that there were 
over 500 seniors in the City of Clennont at poverty level wages, and he remarked that the 
conversation about building housing for seniors was brought about by the community need. 

Mr. Rick Gonzalez commented that he was the Board's representative on the Lake County 

5 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 6 of22 

Affordable Housing Advisory Committee (AHAC), and he said that this request fit with what 
that committee was trying to promote. 

Mr. Gamble clarified with Mr. Smith that the age limit for the development would be 55 and 
higher, rather than the previously stated age of 60 and higher. 

The Chairman opened the floor for public comment. 

There being no one who wished to address the Board, the Chainnan brought it back to the 
Board for discussion. 

Ms. Jones Smith expressed a concern that the County zoning was being used as a workaround 
to avoid the City of Clermont's moratorium; additionally, the Board would also have to grant 
a waiver for it to comply. She said that she understood the need for affordable housing but 
commented that the City was having issues with multifamily housing and how they wanted 
to accommodate affordable housing. She expressed reluctance to waive a standard that was 
in place for county projects while everything around the subject development was being built 
to the city standard. 

MOTION by Rick Gonzalez, SECONDED by Jim Hamilton to APPROVE Tab 3, Beebe 
Property Rezoning. 

FOR: Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton 

AGAINST: Gamble, McKeeby, Jones Smith and Morris 

MOTION DENIED: 4-3 

Tab 4 - MOLOKAI CO-OP MHP REZONING 

Mr. Tim McClendon, Director, Office of Planning & Zoning, presented Tab 4. He said that 
the property was located on the west side of County Road (CR) 437, about a mile north of 
U.S. Highway 441, within Commission District 3. He added that the tract size was about 3.6 
acres, and the request was to replace an existing ordinance with a new ordinance to rezone the 
property from Mixed Home Residential (RM) to PUD; additionally, there was a request for a 
waiver from the PUD acreage. He commented that staff had handed out a revised ordinance 
with additional conditions as requested by the applicant. He displayed the zoning and FLU 
maps for the subject property, noting that the FLU was identified as Urban Medium. He 
relayed the following staff analysis findings: this request was a result of code enforcement 
action around 2008 for several unapproved uses on the property including the use of solid 
waste collection dumpsters, recreational vehicle (RV)/boat storage and overflow parking, 
which were ancillary to the existing Molokai mobile home park; the original rezoning request 
was heard by this Board in October 2019 and that at that time, the request was to rezone the 
property from RM to Mobile Home Rental Park (RMRP); prior to the October 2019 BCC 

6 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 7 of22 

meeting and following a unanimous approval from this Board, the applicant met with an 
adjacent property owner to discuss issues that were occurring on the site; the applicant then 
crafted some conditions to satisfy some of the issues identified by the adjacent property 
owner, though those conditions could not be codified within the RMRP zoning district; the 
only way to insert those conditions in this rezoning ordinance would be through the PUD 
process due to the State of Florida disallowing municipalities and counties from conditioning 
conventional zoning districts; and there was a waiver with this request. He said that staff had 
looked at where the 10 acre requirement for PUDs originated from and found that it was 
unclear why this requirement was chosen when the original PUD ordinance was adopted. He 
indicated that the Board may see a revised LDR to address the 10 acre minimum in the next 
few months and that staff was looking to abandon it due to a lack of justification for the 
requirement. He remarked that the revised ordinance included the modification for up to 60 
boats, RVs or "toys," defined as jet skis, four wheelers, and similar types of incidental uses. 
He added that there could be up to 12 dumpsters, a utilization of an existing mobile home for 
storage, and the applicant would be paving Paradise Lane to be a minimum of 15 feet wide to 
a maximum of 20 feet wide. He remarked that this request was identical to the request 
approved in October 2019, with the only difference being the addition of certain conditions 
to help offset some issues that were discussed between the applicant and the adjacent property 
owner. He said that staff requested that the Board recommend approval of this request to 
rezone about 3.6 acres from RM to PUD to accommodate the accessory uses occurring on the 
site. 

Mr. Gamble asked about the normal requirement for a PUD buffer. 

Mr. McClendon responded that it would be a type B buffer which would include a buffer of 
up to 15 or 20 feet wide with two or three canopy trees within that landscape buffer per 100 
feet. 

Mr. Gamble relayed his understanding that there were some trees there currently. 

Mr. McClendon commented that if this was approved, the applicant would be required to file 
a site plan where the County could identify the buffers; furthermore, the applicant could obtain 
credit for some of those trees within the existing buffer. He added that they would be required 
to plant extra material if they did not meet the minimum requirement. 

Mr. Gamble indicated a concern for visibility for the residents northwest of the subject 
property, though he noted that the mobile home would be used for storage only. He also noted 
that a residence used the road there, and he asked if anything would be done that would 
prevent the resident from getting to their home. 

Mr. McClendon confirmed that the mobile home would not be allowed to be occupied. He 
also clarified that the resident would not be prevented from getting to their home; furthermore, 
the applicant proposed a condition to prohibit blocking or parking within that easement. 

Mr. Gamble noted that the boat storage was increased from 36 to 60 boats, and Mr. 

7 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 8 of22 

McClendon deferred this to the applicant. Mr. Gamble also noticed that there could be a 15 
foot wide paved road, and Mr. McClendon said that it would be 20 feet where available. Mr. 
Gamble thought that the width should be 20 feet. 

Mr. Morris asked why there were dumpsters there, and Mr. Mcclendon deferred this to the 
applicant. 

Ms. Jones Smith indicated an understanding that the property was owned by the Molokai Co­
Op, which she thought was comprised of the owners of the lots who individually made up that 
co-op. She said that an RV, trailer or recreational toy could be parked on a property within 
the RM zoning district as long as it was on the property that the individual owned; therefore, 
she asked that if the co-op represented all owners within, would the property being zoned RM 
not already accommodate them parking there since they individually all owned a percent 
interest in that property. 

Ms. Melanie Marsh, County Attorney, thought that the documents creating this could have 
been in place before the zoning code due to it being an older subdivision. She did not believe 
that the subject property was zoned RMRP. 

Ms. Jones Smith questioned that if the subject property was owned by the co-op, which was 
comprised of the owners in that community, would they all own a percent interest in the 
property that they were trying to rezone to PUD. She indicated a concern that if this was 
accurate, then they would have ownership over the property and could park their equipment 
there because the RM zoning indicated that they could park these items in an RM zoned lot 
as long as it was owned by the person who was parking their item there. She wondered why 
this was being rezoned to PUD aside from the dumpsters. 

Ms. Marsh deferred this to the applicant. She explained that the request to rezone it to PUD 
was because the property owners behind it who were not part of the co-op had conditions that 
they wanted imposed, which could not be done in the RMRP district because it was a straight 
zoning. She elaborated that they switched to a PUD to accommodate the requests of those 
property owners outside of the mobile home park 

Ms. Jones Smith indicated an understanding that the co-op was subject to a code violation 
because they were using the property for outdoor storage, and she asked if this was accurate. 

Mr. McClendon believed that this was the code enforcement action in 2008. 

Ms. Jones Smith asked how a resident who was part of the co-op could be in violation for 
parking their vehicle there. 

Ms. Marsh said that it still had to meet the zoning code, and that property was not zoned to 
have the use for storing vehicles there regardless of who owned it. 

Mr. McClendon clarified that RM zoning would allow up to a single RV, vessel, or boat, and 

8 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 9 of22 

that any subsequent vehicle would need to be screened from the right of way of any easements 
or roads. He stated that the way to alleviate any grey areas was going through this process. 

Ms. Marsh recalled that when the co-op was cited in 2008, they were not the only mobile 
home park that was cited for this. She said that the reason that the code case was never 
pursued at the time was because the Lake County Office of Planning and Zoning was going 
to correct the LDRs to address this issue for these types of parks; however, this did not occur 
and the County began receiving complaints again about this property. 

Ms. Jones Smith asked when this subdivision was platted. 

Ms. Marsh did not know if co-ops were necessarily platted and thought that the applicant 
could answer this. 

Mr. McClendon reiterated that from the staffs standpoint, this request was identical to the 
request that was before the BCC in October 2019 and the only difference was that conditions 
were inserted to alleviate issues with adjacent property owners. 

Mr. Jimmy Crawford, an attorney representing the applicant, said that if the issue went to 
code enforcement, then they would argue that RM zoning allowed the storage and that by 
everyone in the mobile home park having an interest in that property, they would be able to 
store that many units. He felt that arguing legal issues before code enforcement could be 
9hallenging and he expressed an interest in addressing the item through rezoning. He said 
that staff had indicated that the property needed to be rezoned to RMRP and that this had been 
applied for; however, the adjacent property owners had concerns. He noted that he had met 
with them to address conditions and that they wanted to offer conditions to attempt to protect 
the neighbors; furthermore, the only way to do this was with a PUD. He thought that the 
mobile home park began in 1971 or 1972 and that it operated as a developer owned park until 
the mid-1990s when the developers sold it to the owners, after which it was cooperatively 
owned. 

Mr. Gamble asked if each resident there had a share in the co-op. 

Mr. Crawford confinned this for any common area and said that they each had a share in the 
co-op corporation. He elaborated that all of the land was owned by the co-op and that the 
individual lot owners had a 99 year use right that was recorded in the public records; 
furthermore, when they bought and sold, this included their share and use right. He said that 
a condition which they had agreed to include in the PUD was a restriction to toy storage and 
dumpsters. He also noted that the adjacent property owners have had access issues. 

Mr. Gonzalez asked if this was the only access to the neighbor's property, and Mr. Crawford 
confirmed this. Mr. Gonzalez then asked who was there first. 

Mr. Crawford stated that the park was there first and that the subject property was purchased 
in the late 1990s, which began to be used for storage in 2005. He clarified that the maximum 

9 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 10 of22 

number of allowed units there had always been 60 and that spaces had been marked. He 
commented that there would be "no blocking" signage for Paradise Lane, and he displayed an 
image similar to a concept plan which could be attached to the PUD. He noted that it showed 
Paradise Lane, the 20 foot easement, and the nine to ten foot wide roadway there currently. 
He recalled that the property did not have any paved access when it was bought but that it was 
paved after 2005 to the nine or ten feet. He pointed out an existing home and driveway which 
encroached into the easement, with the road being built around them. He remarked that they 
were trying to work around this and that the part of the road that could only be paved to 15 
feet wide was in that area, with the rest of the road being able to be paved to about 20 feet 
wide. He commented that paving it exactly 20 feet wide would create drainage issues and 
said that about 18 feet was the maximum width in most places where a one foot swale could 
be placed on both sides. 

Mr. Gonzalez inquired if the residents on Paradise Lane were part of the co-op, and Mr. 
Crawford confirmed this. Mr. Gonzalez then asked if the co-op purchased this property to 
park items on. 

Mr. Crawford relayed his understanding that it was bought for protection purposes and that 
the co-op was worried that it would get sold for a residence. He commented that the co-op 
started storing trailers there about five or six years after they bought it. He was unsure if the 
neighbor's home was built before the co-op was there, and he noted that the mobile home 
park was there but that the property was not being used for storage when the house was built. 
He suggested a new condition indicating that trailers or vehicles parked on the property must 
be operable and have a valid current tag due to a concern was that it could become a junkyard. 
He showed an image of the property, noting the location of parking spaces and that most of 
the property was open. He did not think that the neighbors could see the trailers from their 
driveway but that they may be able to see them from another angle. He showed an aerial 
picture of the site from 2006 and said that the storage was there but was not spread out as far. 
He then showed a picture from 2009 with the trailer and storage. He commented that it had 
been used in this way for about 11 years, and he remarked that the concept drawing would 
limit the parking area to the labeled areas; furthermore, it would be disallowed in the middle 
of the property or around the edge toward the neighbor's property. He displayed images of 
the property from 2014 and 2017, pointing out that there could be up to 60 units stored there 
in the winter but that it could be less than 30 in the summer. He commented that they would 
go through the site plan process for the landscape buffer and thought that there would have to 
be additional plantings there. 

Mr. Gamble asked who maintained the trees along the driveway to the adjacent property 
owner's home. 

Mr. Crawford believed that the co-op maintained them. He then showed an image of the 
dumpsters and said that they were smaller rolling dumpsters. He explained that the trash had 
always been picked up there by being gathered by an employee, taken to the subject property, 
and then picked up by a commercial dumpster pickup service. He said that this was done 
because the roads had substandard paving and width within the park which did not 

10 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 11 of22 

accommodate a garbage trnck. He remarked that the dumpsters used to be kept elsewhere 
within the park but thought that the County had asked for them to be moved for security 
purposes or another reason. He commented that they could provide screening for the 
dumpsters if necessary. 

Ms. Jones Smith relayed her understanding that the County could not provide curbside trash 
pickup for individual owners because the roads were substandard, but asked if the trncks could 
go down a narrow dirt road to empty the dumpsters. She also asked if the road was paved 
now. 

Mr. Crawford clarified that this road was paved now, and that it was straight and between 
nine and ten feet wide. 

Ms. Jones Smith questioned why the dumpsters needed to be there. 

Mr. Oscar Noel, President of the Molokai mobile home park, said that there were a few dead 
end roads and that a garbage truck would have to back in. He recalled that it was decided to 
obtain the small dumpsters and use them for pickup. He relayed a brief history of garbage 
pickup at the site, and he that noted that tops had been installed on the dumpsters due to bears, 
along with them being kept in good repair. 

The Chairman opened the floor for public comment. 

Ms. Christi LaFond, a neighbor of the subject property, said that she had been there for 21 
years. She opined that the usage of the property in this manner had been a nuisance and a 
code violation, and said that the road was only nine feet wide. She expressed concerns for 
having to share this road with numerous residents, and claimed that the residents came there 
to park their property and that they blocked the road. She relayed her understanding that the 
Lake County Sheriffs Office (LCSO) had been there multiple times and had indicated that 
they would fine the person blocking the road and the park for having the road blocked. She 
did not think that the road was large enough for this many people, and she mentioned that 
Cook Lake was a nationally registered wetland where class A RVs and untagged vehicles 
were being stored. She questioned if the vehicles would be abandoned there and expressed 
concerns for seeing dumpsters when driving to her home; furthermore, she was worried about 
how this could affect her property value. She recounted a brief history of her property and 
opined that the applicant's solution was to move her utilities in order to make the road 20 feet 
wide to avoid disturbing a resident who was encroaching on the right of way. She also 
indicated concerns for leaching and contamination regarding the wetlands there. 

Mr. Mark LaFond, a neighbor of the subject property, noted that ifthere was a 50 foot setback 
around the subject property, there would be about 0.63 acres in the middle and felt that not 
enough vehicles and dumpsters could be stored there. He was amicable with having one RV 
stored there but did not want to see possibly 300 class A RVs on the lot. He felt that more 
items had been stored there over time and indicated a concern for wind blowing debris. 

11 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 12 of22 

There being no one else who wished to address the Board, the Chairman brought it back to 
the Board for discussion. 

Mr. Crawford recalled that the property was cited by the County and that a rezoning was 
applied for at that point, though the County had placed the rezoning on hold to address it. He 
said that there had been no code enforcement or zoning for the next 10 years, and they applied 
for a rezoning to address the violation which came up again. He felt that many of the LaFonds' 
issues were addressed by adopting a PUD with the included rnles and restrictions. He 
explained that there could not be any abandoned trailers there, that there could be trash pickup, 
that the property was already being used for storage in 2006 or 2007, that the site would be 
capped at the current use, and that the dumpsters now had tops to prevent windblown debris. 

Mr. Gonzalez asked if the dumpsters were there in 1999, and Mr. Crawford indicated that 
they were placed there after 2001. 

Mr. Noel noted that the concept plan showed a setback of 50 feet from the bank of the 
wetlands, and he said that if the ability to park there was lost, there would be more vehicles 
closer to the LaFonds. He said that the roadway was paved at nine to ten feet but that there 
was also dirt on the sides so that there was more width. He mentioned that the majority of the 
trailers on the site were small utility or enclosed trailers rather than RVs; furthermore, he· 
thought that there were less than 10 RVs. He commented that some people may go back there 
to empty trash into a dumpster and that most of the vehicles parked there did not move often. 
He noted that the dumpsters were visible but felt that they had to be placed somewhere. 

Mr. Gonzalez inquired if there was an abandoned class A vehicle there. 

Mr. Noel denied this and relayed that they had someone who enforced this; furthermore, each 
vehicle parked on the site had to have a sticker from the park. He said that a class A vehicle 
may have been there but that he thought it was registered. 

Mr. Gonzalez asked if this vehicle would be moved if this request was approved, and Mr. 
Noel said that it would be moved if it was not registered and operational. 

Mr. Jim Hamilton asked.to clarify ifthere would be fencing around the dumpsters to block 
them from sight. 

Mr. Crawford indicated that staff had told them that under the RMRP zoning, they would have 
to fence or enclose the dumpster area on three sides. He said that this was a site plan issue 
but that the Board could require this in the PUD. He stated that they would be willing to 
enclose and landscape the dumpster area. 

Ms. Jones Smith recalled that this request required a waiver for the code requirement stating 
that a PUD must be at least 10 acres. 

Mr. Gonzalez indicated that staff had explained that there was no basis for this requirement. 

12 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 13 of22 

Ms. Jones Smith stated that staff had not presented a final finding to the Board nor had they 
submitted a recommended ordinance. 

Mr. McClendon said that when staff researched the issue, they pulled the first ordinance for 
the PUD zoning district that was placed in the LDRs; furthennore, they were unable to identify 
where the 10 acre requirement originated from. He said that for the flexibility of Lake County 
citizens, the Board would possibly see a revised LDR ordinance where staff would 
recommend to remove the 10 acre requirement. 

Mr. Gonzalez asked to confirm that there were numerous trailer parks in the county that were 
under 10 acres in size, and Mr. McClendon said that this was correct. 

Ms. Jones Smith clarified that the applicant was not requesting to rezone the mobile home 
park; rather they were rezoning the empty lot. 

Ms. McKeeby noted that the dumpster had to be placed somewhere and that the garbage trucks 
could not travel down the roads in the park. 

Ms. Jones Smith relayed her understanding that this was not the only public space in that 
community. 

Mr. Gamble noted that another comment card had been received for this item, so he allowed 
that citizen to speak. 

Ms. Linda Stowell, a resident of Lake County, indicated her understanding that the dumpsters 
were moved to the subject property because bears were getting into them. She said that there 
were 272 shares in the co-op and that 272 residents owned a portion of that property; 
furthermore, she thought that they could each park one extra vehicle on that property. She 
noted that the applicant was agreeing to a buffer and fencing in the dumpsters, and she 
expressed a concern for limiting it to 60 spaces due to there being 272 shares in the co-op. 
She did not think that one property should outweigh 272 other properties. 

MOTION by Rick Gonzalez, SECONDED by Kathryn McKeeby to APPROVE Tab 4, 
Molokai Co-Op MHP Rezoning, with the modification to require stored vehicles to be 
operable and tagged. 

FOR: McKeeby, Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton 

AGAINST: Gamble, Jones Smith, Morris 

MOTION CARRIED: 4-3 

13 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 14 of22 

Tab 5 - SA VEAFOX SANCTUARY CUP 

Ms. Johnson presented Tab 5. She explained that the property was located at 19231 CR 33, 
in the City of Groveland area, and was identified by alternate key number 3438094. She said 
that the property was approximately 9 .65 acres, and the applicant was requesting a conditional 
use pennit (CUP) to allow an exotic animal sanctuary on Agriculture zoned property. She 
displayed the zoning and FLU maps for the property, noting that the current FLU was Rural. 
She displayed the concept plan, and she relayed these staff analysis findings: the subject 9.65 
acre property was zoned Agriculture; the conditional use request was consistent with LDRs 
Table 3.01.03, Schedule of Permitted and Conditional Uses, which allowed exotic animals 
within the Agriculture zoning district with an appropriate land use regulatory instrument, with 
a CUP satisfying this requirement; and the conditional use request was consistent with Comp 
Plan Policy I-1.4.4, Rural Future Land Use Category, which stated that animal specialty 
services were allowed within the FLU category with an appropriate land use regulatory 
instrument. 

Mr. Gamble asked if public comments could be considered now. 

Ms. Johnson confirmed this and noted that the applicant was unable to attend today but that 
there were some members from the Save a Fox corporation in attendance. 

The Chairman opened the floor for public comment. 

Ms. Alda Bradnick, a neighbor of the subject property, said that she walked in the area and 
that she disapproved of having animals next door. 

Ms. Christina Shrout, a neighbor of the subject property, said that she did not want the animals 
there and thought that the scent could draw wild animals to the area. She claimed that the 
neighborhood had a petition indicating that the facility was not wanted there. She also 
suggested that it would create traffic and noise. 

Ms. Kellie Kruse, a resident of Ramsey County in the State of Minnesota and representing 
Save a Fox, relayed her understanding that the scent of these animals was more likely to keep 
away other predatory animals. She clarified that they were not looking to intrude on the 
neighbors' properties and said that they wanted to rescue these animals. She opined that the 
animals did not make a significant amount of noise, and stated that they kept the property 
clean and cared for the animals. She clarified that tours were on a scheduled basis, and she 
thought that the rescue could work with the neighbors to update them on what was occurring. 
She did not feel that there had been issues in the State of Minnesota and that they had been 
successful there. 

Mr. Stephen Brauer, a neighbor of the subject property, expressed concerns for the facility 
being nonprofit and for delivery services damaging his driveway that he maintained. He 
alleged that the applicant's facility in the State of Minnesota had been shut down because their 
capacity of foxes was exceeded. He questioned where an RV could be parked when there 

14 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 15 of22 

would only be six parking spaces. He expressed concerns for numerous people visiting the 
site and also for other animal sanctuaries in the area. He submitted a petition against the 
request, and he thought that there was land for sale elsewhere that could be utilized. 

Ms. Meghan Hines, from Stearns County in the State of Minnesota and representing Save a 
Fox, displayed images from activities at the Save a Fox rescue in the State of Minnesota. She 
clarified that the traffic would not be comparable to a zoo nor would they have tours on most 
days; additionally, their tour capacity was three or less people three or four times a week. She 
added that tours required an appointment and that they intended to have a similar operation to 
that which was in the State of Minnesota. She said that they intended to operate quietly and 
that they did not receive packages at their location in the State of Minnesota. 

Mr. Gonzalez asked Ms. Hines to explain her position in this organization, if it was a 
nationwide organization, and if they owned the property. 

Ms. Hines stated that she was the development director for Save a Fox and that she sat on the 
board of directors; furthermore, she commented that the organization was only in the State of 
Minnesota. She said they did not own the property and relayed that the individual who was 
supposed to present the case today had experienced a medical issue on the previous day. 

Mr. Gonzalez inquired if they would want to suspend this case until another time, and Ms. 
Hines thought they could address any concerns. 

Ms. Jones Smith asked how many Save a Fox rescue locations they had in the country, and 
Ms. Hines indicated that they had one location in the State of Minnesota. Ms. Jones Smith 
then asked to confinn whether they were looking to purchase the subject property to open a 
second location or to move their current location. 

Ms. Hines clarified that they were looking to open a second location due to a need to expand. 
She relayed that their current city and county in the State of Minnesota had refused to let them 
take more animals. She also explained that the majority of their rescue animals were captive 
born, captive bred foxes. 

Mr. Gonzalez inquired why they chose the subject property. 

· Ms. Jones Smith inquired who would be rnnning this operation and if individuals would be 
living on the site. 

Ms. Hines responded that it was one of the only sites with sufficient land capacity and the 
Agriculture zoning. She also said that there would be at least two live-in staff and that one of 
them would be relocating there from the State of Minnesota. 

Mr. Gonzalez asked about the qualifications of the people who ran this organization. 

Ms. Hines explained that their founder had been working with foxes for 10 years and that she 

15 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 16 of22 

was the main handler of the animals. She elaborated that other individuals had trained under 
her. 

Mr. Gonzalez then asked if this individual had any formal training. 

Ms. Hines said that they had some schooling but that they did not complete their veterinarian 
studies degree. 

Ms. McKeeby inquired if they were involved in rehabilitation, and Ms. Hines denied this. 

Mr. Gonzalez asked if there was a veterinarian associated with the organization, and Ms. 
Hines confinned that they had a veterinarian who saw all of their animals in the State of 
Minnesota; additionally, a veterinarian had also been found in the State of Florida. 

Ms. McKeeby asked how many foxes they had at their facility in the City of Minnesota, and 
Ms. Hines said that they had 20 adult foxes there and wanted 40 foxes in Lake County. 

Mr. Gonzalez questioned how they were funded, and Ms. Hines explained that they were 
funded through donations primarily from their social media following of over 500,000 people. 
She opined that they were well funded and had a steady flow of monthly income. Mr. 
Gonzalez then asked if they took in· captive bred foxes to live there. 

Ms. Hines commented that they obtained them from fur fanns when they were sick and that 
they would typically be euthanized; however, her organization was able to obtain them and 
move them to their property. She clarified that these were not foxes that were found outdoors. 

Ms. McKeeby asked to clarify that the foxes were raised in fur farms to be killed for their fur. 

Ms. Hines said this was correct. She related that if the pups were sick or if the mother was 
unable to care for them, this could be a liability for the farm. 

Mr. Gonzalez inquired if foxes came there from throughout the country and if they would 
bringing foxes from the State of Minnesota to the State of Florida. 

Ms. Hines noted that there were farms all over the country but that the farms they worked 
with were mostly local to the State of Minnesota. She denied that they would be bringing 
foxes to the State of Florida from the State of Minnesota. She stated that some individuals . 
had expressed interest in surrendering their captive born foxes to her organization and that 
this was another reason why they needed a new location. She commented that when the 
animals could not be taken in, their owners could hide them or free them into the community. 

Mr. Gamble did not think that the driveway was maintained by the County, and he asked what 
they would do to maintain it. 

Ms. Hines indicated that they had plans and funding to build their own driveway and that they 

16 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 17 of22 

did not anticipate a high volume of traffic. 

Ms. Jones Smith mentioned that based on an aerial picture, there was a curb cut on CR 33 and 
an apron coming in, then the driveway went a short distance before it split into two driveways; 
furthermore, it would curve into the subject propetiy. She wondered how the easement 
worked for these driveways. 

Ms. Johnson said that for the current driveway access which connected to CR 33, staffs 
understanding was that it was an easement that had an apron through another resident's 
property. She indicated that in a meeting with the applicant, staff explained that it was likely 
that they would have to obtain their own access; furthermore, access improvements would be 
addressed during the site plan phase. 

Ms. Jones Smith inquired if they would have to make their own curb cut onto CR 33 and if 
they would be unable to use the neighbor's driveway. 

Mr. Seth Lynch, with the Lake County Public Works Department, said that he was unaware 
of a meeting or a discussion about access that would be different from what was currently 
there. 

Ms. Jones Smith asked if it would be reasonable to assume that he would not want more curb 
cuts on CR 33, and Mr. Lynch responded that they would have to evaluate it and that it was 
County maintained. 

There being no one else who wished to address the Board, the Chairman brought it back to 
the Board for discussion. 

Mr. Morris thought that the Board needed to postpone the case to let staff meet and learn the 
facts. He asked if the case could be postponed for 60 days. 

Mr. Gamble indicated that this time could also be used to address issues with nearby residents. 

Ms. Marsh indicated that the Board could postpone it however long they wanted; however, 
she suggested specifying the Board's April or May 2020 meeting because it may not fall 
within exactly 60 days. 

Mr. Morris asked if the applicant would be amicable with this. 

Ms. Hines said that she was personally amicable to this but felt that it was a timely situation 
with building. 

Mr. Gonzalez suggested postponing the case to the May 2020 meeting. He said that the Save 
a Fox owner could come back to represent their operation and that they could also consider 
alternative sites. 

17 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 18 of22 

Ms. Jones Smith wondered if one month would be enough time for the applicant to meet with 
the neighbors and the County. 

Mr. Greene was unsure if 30 days would be sufficient to meet with the neighbors and staff 
with regard to the driveway access issue. He recommended to postpone the case either 60 or 
90 days due to uncertainty about the wellbeing of the primary applicant. He also thought that 
90 days would be enough time to meet with the adjacent property owners. 

MOTION by Tim Morris, SECONDED by Kathryn McKeeby to POSTPONE Tab 5, 
SaveaFox Sanctuary CUP, to the June 2020 Planning and Zoning Board meeting. 

FOR: Gamble, McKeeby, Jones Smith, Morris, Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton 

AGAINST: None 

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0 

Tab 6- CREATE CONSERVATORY/SAWYER REZONING 

Mr. Greene presented Tab 6. He said that this rezoning was for a 3.1 acre property from Rural 
Residential (R-1) to Community Facility District (CPD) to accommodate an educational 
facility and also to request a setback waiver to the front setback requirement. He explained 
that the property was surrounded on all four sides by the Rural FLU and R-1 zoning, and that 
the Rural FLU allowed institutional facilities such as schools; however, R-1 zoning did not 
allow this and this was why the request was for CPD zoning. He indicated that the property 
was intended to have a K-5 school specializing in science, technology, engineering and 
mathematics (STEM) education with a maximum of 80 students and seven staffers. He stated 
that the property was within the Emeralda Marsh area along Bertsville Road. He displayed a 
concept plan, and relayed that staff had indicated that the Rural FLU allowed educational 
facilities; however, the proposed use with regards to land use compatibility with the 
surrounding rural nature of the property was inconsistent and incompatible. He mentioned 
that the property would be required to have central water and sewer, though the Town of Lake 
Lady had indicated that those services were unavailable. He said that currently, the property 
functioned as a residential property and they would have to accommodate their own well and 
septic tank onsite. He related that currently, the well serving this property was across the 
street and served three different properties; furthermore, if the project was approved, it would 
have a level of impact and intensive uses that would be incompatible with the surrounding 
rural community. He commented that the LDRs required a noise study and that staff opined 
that the school would have noise levels that exceed the existing noise in the area. He 
concluded that staff found the request to be incompatible with adjacent land uses and the 
existing rural nature of the adjacent R-1 zoning districts. 

Mr. Hamilton asked if the applicant would be using Crown Place to access the site and if the 
site already had a home on it. 

18 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 19 of22 

Mr. Greene displayed a map of the area and clarified that the access would come from 
Bertsville Road and then to Crown Place. He also confirmed that there was already a home 
there which would be converted into a school. 

Ms. Jones Smith inquired if there were pump houses across the road from the site. 

Mr. Greene thought that they were residences but said that they could be pump houses. 

Mr. Gamble said that the Board had received a letter indicating that there were now four 
homes in that area. 

Ms. Nikki Duslak, Founder and Head of School for CREATE Conservatory and representing 
the applicant, opined that the public school system in the area was inadequate for gifted 
students. She said that the options for gifted learners in North Lake currently was to attend 
Beverly Shores Elementary School one day per week. She relayed her understanding that 
Beverly Shores Elementary School was an "F" rated school and felt that the county would not 
attract top talent in certain fields because there were no top schools for their children. She 
relayed that 25 letters of support had been submitted to the Board and that there were an 
additional 30 names currently on her school's enrollment list. She commented that the other 
locations they investigated were not ideal and that they chose this house in the Town of Lady 
Lake because it was a tranquil environment. She felt that the property provided ideal safety 
and access, and she clarified that CREATE Conservatory was a nonprofit K.-5 school that 
taught STEM education through arts integration. She commented that they would consider 
community concerns as they developed their plans, and she relayed these items to address 
traffic concerns: incentives for carpooling; staggered start and end times; and beforecare and 
aftercare options. She concluded that they did not intend to have 80 vehicles coming and 
going each day. 

Mr. Gonzalez asked if she owned this property, and Ms. Duslak replied that they were 
currently in a due diligence period. 

Mr. Gamble asked to confirm how many students they were considering, and Ms. Duslak said 
that they would have a maximum capacity of 80 students. Mr. Gamble also felt that there had 
been a significant turnaround at Beverly Shores Elementary School. He indicated that his 
concern was for the road, and he asked if it was concrete. 

Ms. Duslak relayed her understanding that this was correct. 

Mr. Gamble thought that there could still be at least 40 to 50 cars per day, and he questioned 
how wide the road was and if it was a county road. 

Mr. Lynch explained that the road was concrete, 20 feet wide, and not maintained by the 
County; however, Bertsville Road was maintained by Lake County and was recently repaved, 
and Griffin View Drive was also maintained by the County. He said that these roads were 
used to get to the road at the subject property and that the road there was drivable. 

19 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 20 of22 

Ms. Jones Smith inquired how that road was maintained. 

Ms. Duslak thought that three other homes on that road currently shared in its maintenance. 
She suggested having it in writing that the school would be responsible for the significant 
majority of maintaining that road. 

Mr. Gamble asked how the children would be fed. 

Ms. Duslak commented that students would have to bring their lunch.and that there would be 
no deliveries; however, a garbage truck would travel there. 

Mr. Gonzalez inquired if they would have a commercial kitchen, and Ms. Duslak said that 
there was no food service. Mr. Gonzalez then asked why this site was chosen when it did not 
have the proper zoning or adequate access. He felt that it was the incorrect site. 

Ms. Duslak did not believe that the access was inadequate and said that the majority of 
commercial zonings in this area were in areas with high traffic, noise and density. She 
expressed that they did not necessary want children in those places and that they had looked 
at over 50 properties, with the subject property being voted on by their board. She felt that 
the house could support what they were trying to do, that the site was safe, and that it had 
space for the children to play. She believed that the property was accessible and that most 
other schools functioned in higher density locations in this area with more children. 

Ms. Jones Smith asked if this was the last house on the road. 

Ms. Duslak confirmed this and said that the driveway was a cul-de-sac which could support 
drop offs and pickups. · 

The Chairman opened the floor for public comment. 

Ms. Kim Levine, a business owner in Lake County, felt that the benefits of arts integration 
and the reduction in arts funding in the state supported the proposed school. She said that 
there was potential for her company to become involved and that they supported the creative 
process in learning. She added that her organization had committed to supporting the 
development and the funding of the schools' marketing efforts, along with contributing two 
scholarships. 

Mr. Gonzalez asked about her position with the schoo~, and Ms. Levine replied that she was 
a board member. Mr. Gonzalez then inquired if this site was focused on due to budget 
restrictions, and Ms. Duslak denied this. 

Mr. Mark Duslak, a resident of Lake County, spoke about Ms. Duslak's education background 
and felt that she built outstanding teams. He said that the school's board represented members 
who were the top talent in their fields and noted that the school was nonprofit. He opined that 
there were not enough opportunities to meet the diverse educational needs of students in the 

20 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 21 of22 

area, and that CREATE Conservatory addressed this issue. He relayed that the neighbors and 
the community would be considered, and he urged the Board to support the request. 

Ms. Amber Karlins, Chair of the Board for CREATE Conservatory and a professor at Lake­
Sumter State College, said that she believed in public education but felt that the cmrent system 
was unable to adequately meet the needs of gifted, talented and creative learners. She also 
opined that one day per week at Beverly Shores Elementary School was insufficient to serve 
this population. She indicated that their intention was not to be in a residential area, but 
thought that the subject property was correct. She stated that they would work with the 
neighbors and the community to address challenges. 

Mr. Dean Barber, a neighbor of the subject property, expressed concerns for the following 
items: decreased property values; the type A buffer consisting of vegetation rather than a 
fence; a neighbor who was worried about children coming onto their property; livestock 
harming children; the roadway not constituting a school due to the traffic; having to repair the 
road; and water and septic service. He said that they shared a pump house that serviced the 
three homes, and he was concerned that the pipes would not withstand increasing the pump 
pressure. He was also worried that the road could not accommodate the weight of a firetruck, 
that there was only one way in and out, and that there would be increased lighting and noise. 
He asked the Board to deny the request. 

Ms. Jones Smith asked how the pump house worked. 

Mr. Barber responded that one line left the pump house and went up the road to go to each 
individual home. He also described it as being one main with three individual junctions and 
noted that it serviced each property. 

There being no one else who wished to address the Board, the Chainnan brought it back to 
the Board for discussion. 

Ms. Duslak explained that the type A landscape buffer was included because it was what they 
were advised to write by the Lake County Office of Planning and Zoning; however, they 
intended to fence in the school for safety. She opined that the water consumption would be 
similar to a single family residence due to the use of the water. She said that they were 
investigating potentially installing a private well, and that they were working with the United 
States Department of Agriculture (USDA) on a grant that would help them bring the property 
up to code and ensure that it was adequately lit. She relayed that there was an empty field 
behind them that they could use for children to leave the property in case of an emergency; 
furthermore, they would work with local law enforcement and the community to ensure a safe 
exit plan for the students there. She opined that the community benefit of the school 
outweighed the concerns of an individual neighbor, and she relayed her understanding that 
the majority of other schools functioned with more students in higher density areas than the 
subject location. 

21 



Planning & Zoning Board Meeting 
March 4, 2020 
Page 22 of22 

Mr. Gonzalez asked about evacuating the students on private property, and Ms. Jones Smith 
clarified that it would be on the subject property. Mr. Gonzalez opined that this was not the 
correct location. 

Ms. McKeeby recalled that the property was inconsistent with the area's land development. 

Ms. Jones Smith agreed but hoped that they could find a good location in the area to serve 
this population. 

Mr. Gamble indicated that there were five letters of objection. He applauded what the 
applicant was doing but thought that a different location would be preferable. 

MOTION by Rick Gonzalez, SECONDED by Cori Todd to DENY Tab 6, Create 
Conservatory/Sawyer Rezoning. 

FOR: Gamble, McKeeby, Jones Smith, Morris, Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton 

AGAINST: None 

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0 

OTHER BUSINESS 

Mr. Greene indicated that the next meeting would be on April 1, 2020 and would include an 
election of officers. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11 : 18 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~TP---- ~b_ 
/ 

Josh Pearson Sandh-&k 
Deputy Clerk, Board Support Chairman 

22 



LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REOUEST FORM 
Please fill out the information be low. Al l speakers will be limited to three minutes; howeve r, the Chair retains the 

discretion to adjust speak ing time lim its as he or she deems necessary. 

First and Last Name: (YlQr ~ 4 QhV'i-s f i L~ro nd Date: 3/4-/;;;,o{).O 
' 

County of Residence: __ _ --~-------------------------LJ~

Topic: rvlolotru' 12.e:w 1b'_:) 

Tab No. (if opplicoble) ___ hf__.'-----------

REAL FLORIDA· REAL CLOSE 

Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 
handouts or displays must al_so submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 
Generally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the 
Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment card.s. Comment cards are considered public record and 
will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes. 

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REOUEST FORM 
Please fil l out t he informat ion be low. All speakers will be li mited to three minutes; however, th e Chair ret ains t he 

discretion to adjust speakin g t ime lim its as he or she deems necessary. 

First and Last Name: -L· 1 ~ S:fqvJ-e_// 3/f 20 Date: 

I - 'I_~ 
County of Residence: __ _ _ Jl- 1...... _ J--O _ _________________________ _ 

Topic: fh D Jo k,:,c.j / /;'[,{jjO /2-c Z O Vl ( ~ 

Tab No. (if appl icable ) ___ s=··=-·---------
Res
me
han
Gen

idents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
etings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 
douts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 
erally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the 

COUNTY, FL Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards. Comment cords ore considered public record and 
REAL rLoR,aA - REAL cLosE will be submitted os port of the meeting minutes. 



----------

---------

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REOUEST FORM 
Please fi ll out t he informatio n below. All speake rs will be limi t ed to three minu t es; however, th e Chai r reta ins the 

d iscret ion t o adjust speak in g t ime limits as he or she deems necessary. 

First and Last Name: ll!l°= Bea dn r'c.. k Date: 5 I 1- l10:1 o r; 
County of Residence: ------------------------------

Topic: -----------------------------------

Tab No. (if opplicoble ) s · 

Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 
h

REAL FLna1nA. REAL nnsE 

COUNTY. FL 

andouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 
Generally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item ~as begun; however, the 
Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards. Comment cards are considered public record ond 
will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes. 

-~ 

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REOUEST FORM 
Please fil l ou t t he info rmat ion below. All speakers will be limited to three minu t es ; howeve r·, the Chair ret ains the 

discretion t o adjust speaking t ime limits a,..s he ~ deems necessary. _ 

First and Last Name: ~d ~ fvv~ Date: d 3 6 Y"" ;/d;J.J 

County of Residence: ------------------------------

Topic: ---------------------------------

Tab No. (if opplicoble) ..S-

Re
me
han
Ge

c Q UN TY. FL Ch

sidents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
et ings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 
douts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 

nerally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the 
air has the discretion to accept additional comment card_s. Comment cards are considered public record and 

REAL FLnR10A . a EAL nosE will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes. 



- --------------- - ----------------------------- --- - ----- - - - - -------- ------------

--------

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REOUEST FORM 
Please f ill ou t t he info rmat ion be low. All speakers wi ll be limited t o three minutes; howeve r, t he Cha ir retains the 

disc retion to adj ust speaking t ime li mits as he or she deems necessary. 

Date: First and Last Name: STE.. ?H-£.rJ Biz r=:\ v..,G.R_ 3) t/) :JO 

County of Residence: /9 317 COv,vT"'( .J2i::>. '3 ~ 

Topic: 5,4v IE v) Foy.... 

Tab No. (if applicable) --------=s=--------

Re
m
ha
Ge
Ch

sidents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
eetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 
ndouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 
nerally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of.an agenda item ~as begun; however, the 
air has the discretion to accept additional comment card_s. Comment cards are considered public record and 

REAL FLORIDA· REAL CLOSE will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes. 

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REOUEST FORM 
Please fill out the info rmation below. Al l speakers will be limited to three minutes; howeve r, t he Chai r retains the 

discretion to ~djust speaking t ime limits as he or she deems necessary. 

\lt l l\--l k-:-v\ .J¼­ Date: OL{ / ~g / 2f:JZ(J First and Last Name: 

County of Residence: ~W\~ (oU)ili f 
Topic: &cW<L nf ai ttsuJ l 

Tab No. (if applicable) S 

R
m
h
G

C Q UN TY. FL C
REAL noR10A. REAL cLosE w

esidents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
eetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 

andouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 
enerally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the 
hair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards. Comment cards are considered public record and 
ill be submitted as part of the meeting minutes. 



LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM 
Please fill out the in fo rmat ion below. Al l speakers wil l be limi t ed to th ree minutes; however, the Cha ir ret ai ns the 

d iscretion to adjust speaking t ime li mits as he or she deems necessary. 

Date: First and Last Name: ifuy~ th'tl..t--:2 e/<-f I Q-b 

County of Residence: "-.)ie_Q..,((v\S u ~ tl/l, (\) 

Topic: "S'~ ~--s, L,Ve-- Q_u:£ 

s· 
Tab No. (if opplicoble) ____________ _ 

Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 
handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 
Generally, comment cards will no.t be accepted after the presentation ofan agefnda item has begun; however, the 
Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment card_s. Comment cards are considered public record and 

REAL FLORIDA· REAL CLOSE will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes. 

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REOUEST FORM 
Please f i ll out the informat ion below. Al l speakers will be lim ited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the 

d iscretion to adjus t speak ing t ime limits as he or she deems necessary. 

First and Last Name: (.-'\,'m L.e \h·,,,-,..e.., Date: '3 ~'L{.. L 2. 0 

County of Residence: __ ___.L""""-"'(J..:::..:K~e..~----------------------

Topic: Z.on {t]j C {A~ Se., Cr~ fl~~ 

Tab No. (if opplicoble) - -\-'J-----------

Resid
meeti
hando
Gener

. COUNTY. FL Chair 
REAL FL0R10A. REAL cLosc will be 

ents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
ngs must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 
uts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk . . The Chair will call each speaker's name. 
ally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the 
has the discretion to accept additional comment cards. Comment cards are considered public record and 
submitted as part of the meeting minutes. 



LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REOUEST FORM 
Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the 

discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary. 

First and Last Name: A,fv,h,e_/ ./(u ! ii/\ s Date: '3 J Gf./ 2() z ~ 
I I 

County of Residence: lq1,k-r ~"-------------------------

To pi c: LR_(Jt.r6 Cov,. ;s-e,, u 2 ny..,.----f 
~ 

Tab No. (if applicable) ----'~=/J ___________ _ 

COUNTY, FL 
RE Al nrnnA. REAL cLosE 

R
m
ha
G
C
wil

esidents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
eetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 
ndouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 

enerally, comment cards will not be accepted afterthe presentation of.an agenda item has begun; however, the 
hair has the discretion to accept additional comment card_s. Comment cards are considered publ.ic record and 
l be submitted as part of the meeting minUt€S. 

--------·----------

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REOUEST FORM 

in.9 time limits as he 

,,/_wtldl-::~"'----

Please fifl out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the 

discretion to adjust speak or she deems necessary. 

First and Last Name: _ -+-,L,-,,N=J\"--'~=-----------­ Date:~ 

County of Residence: ~l--~~U--=-----------------------

Topic= b 11r ohey± C{Z{Jvaf-

Tab No. (if opplicoble) --l~fi.,:,,~----------

Reside
meetin
handou
Generall

C OUN TY, FL Chair h
REAL FL0R10A. REAL cLosE will be s

nts wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
gs must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 
ts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk .. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 
y, comment cards will not be accepted .after the presentation ofan agenda item has begun; however, the 

as the discretion to accept additional comment card_s. Comment cards are considered public record and 
ubmitted as part of the meeting minutes. 



Re
me
ha
Ge

o UN TY, FL Ch
RE.AL FL0R10, . nEAL ctosE will

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM 
Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be lim ited to three minutes; howeve r, the Chair retains the 

discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary. 

First and Last Name: G ( { tt Olt=t lif £- :5. Qo13 L <::: s Date: 0(? - 0 2/ - Aa:?----0 

County of Residence: l ,1--:h; e . 

Topic: ----------------------------------

Tab No. (if applicable) ---"'=--- b _ <p ___ _______ 

Resi
meet
hand
Gene
ChairCO UN TY. FL 

dents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' 
ings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing · 
outs or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 
rally, comment cards wili not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item ~as begun; however; the 
 has the discretion to accept additional comment card_s. _Comment cards are considered public record and 

REAL FL0R1oa . REAL cto s E will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes. 

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REOUEST FORM 
Please fill out the informat ion below. All speakers wil l be limited to three minu tes ; however, the Chair retains the 

discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary. 

First and Last Name: DCA0 I3 A -t:--. /Je~ Date: 3 )9)-z_c,6 (..3 
I I 

1 

County of Residence: ---=l --=o=--'-k---" =--=c=--------------------------

Topic: f<e2-on 1~ fJppL~~ 

'&,..Tab No. (if applicable) --~· ,e_· _________ _ 

sidents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners' · 
etings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing 

ndouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name. 
nerally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the 
air has the discretion to accept additional c_omment cards. Comment cards are considered public record and 
 be submitted as part of the meeting minutes. 



/tL6 s-



Tt).ls 

March 1, 2020 

RE:19231 County Road 33 Groveland, FL 34736 

Case NO. & Project Name: CUP-19-16-1 SaveaFox Sanctuary 

To whom it may concern, 

This letter is notice that the Sanctuary is not wanted at the above address. Not just due to the neighbors 
privacy and wanting to continue our quiet lives, but the fact that the driveway is shared with ours, there 
will be a lot of traffic, signs etc.. We just put over $10k into our driveway and not needing that ruined 
only a couple months after we did this. We do not give permission to have Public and Business use 
across or accessed by our property. 

Even if they were to make their own entrance, there would still be attention drawn to our now quiet 
area due to the fact that in the papers it stated educational tours and events of over 500 people. From 
what I was told by Ms. Raines mother, there is only going to be 6 parking spots. Where do you think 
those 500 people will try to park??? Even if they were to open the gate and let them park back more on 
the property, there is not enough room with the home that is there, shed, and all the homes for the 
animals which showed about 16 on the plans I saw. Even if it were only 50, that is still too much! 
They get deliveries of donations also from Amazon, UPS, Fedex, we dont need this business next door 
and yes it is a business. This is a residential area with homes on each side of this property and we wish 
to keep our privacy and quiet neighborhood. 

It is not wanted by any of the neighbors, they have chickens, cows, horses and goats and do not want 
them bothered by the animals and we certainly do not want to be bothered by the noises. I moved out 
of Orlando for a reason, peace and quiet. I pointed out to Sandy (Mikaylahs mom) that there were 3 
other properties with homes on them and their own driveways in Groveland for sale, plus there are 
other properties that they can go to without disturbing our peace. 

Please take in to consideration the property owners in the area (petition attached) that do not want them 
here. A few of them told me they have already had to shoot coyotes roaming their properties and will 
not hesitate to shoot the foxes also. They don't want the coyotes on their properties as they come after 
their chickens and a few of them mentioned that this being close to us would attract more of the wild 
animals as they smell the animals. We certainly do not want that either. If the permit is allowed and 
Zoning approves their own driveway., Saveafox must record in a deed benefitting the property 
owner to the burdened property release of the easement. Thank you for your time. 

Signed, 

~ 
Lisa Brauer 

19317 County Road 33 Groveland, FL 34736 407-721-5905 



\ 

PETITION 

We, the neighbors and property owners surrounding 19231 County Road 33 Groveland, Fl. 34736, hereby petition against the Saveafox Corporation 
moving on to and opening the business/rescue. This will bring unwanted attention to our now quiet and secluded neighborhood, especially with 2 
residential homes touching the property and currently sharing access from otfdrlveway. 
Even If there were a separate driveway, there Is still one property that sharert'frea'rive. Signs will be put up, deliveries made for the donations of food, 
bedding, etc .... We demand this permit not be allowed. 





·'. . . ... . ....... .,.,_~~·· ~~-- .......... -···•····· . 

, .. 
) 

,1 

~-·-

. 
··, 



Cons having Save a Fox Sanctuary Next to Residential Properties: 

TtA,.b _s-

• The sounds the foxes make are high pitched screaming - one may not be disturbing, but 
multiple can be quite a disturbance for nearby homeowners. 

• Foxes are known to have a unique smell and within their urine and feces, this would 
diminish the air quality to homeowners in the surrounding area. Nearby residents have 
asthma and allergies and the air quality could cause possible increased complications. 

• There are raccoons, coyotes, bobcats and other foxes and alligators have been seen in 
this area throughout the years. Rabies could easily be transferred if rescues are not 
caged and monitored. 

• The property value of surrounding homeowners would depreciate having such a 
sanctuary to nearby residents. 

• There are young children and small domestic animals that would be adjacent to the 
location of the fox's cages. 

• The 6ft enclosed cages to house the rescued foxes are approximately only 130 ft from a 
residential home. There is a lot of property on Safe a Fox Sanctuary's parcel to house the 
cages somewhere other than that close to the door of a residential home with young 
children and small animals. 

• As a 40-year resident of this property- it is a known fact that it can become very wet 
with standing water. This would increase the smell of urine and feces in the proximity of 
residential homes and flies would become an increased problem as well. 

• The land may be zoned as agriculture land, but it is also susceptible to flooding as most 
of the land is zoned wetlands. 

Stipulations if Save a Fox Sanctuary is Approved: 

• There needs to be a well/pump installed on Save a Fox Sanctuary property and ALL 
water sources from the well/pump on adjacent property of Angela D Bogart should be 
disconnected to ALL buildings and faucets on the property of Save a Fox Sanctuary. 

• If this Sanctuary is approved to house rescue foxes, there needs to be a fence and 
vegetation barrier on the property line to the nearby residential homes to eliminate 
some (would not eliminate all) noise and view. Keep in mind, this would still not 
eliminate the smell or flies. 

Questions and/or Concerns if Save a Fox Sanctuary is Approved: 

• What other animals will be permitted to be housed.on property? 

• How often will property inspections be made to assure Save a Fox Sanctuary is operating 
within County guidelines? Owner has been known to house more animals than 
permitted (see articles) 



-

• What actions will be taken if any of the animals escape from Save a Fox Sanctuary? 
Owner has had animals escape in the past. (see articles) 

• Will someone reside on Save a Fox Sanctuary's property at all times to assure the safety 
of all animals and the safety of the adjacent properties with small children and animals? 

• Why has there been loud music late at night and multiple gunshots fired late at night 
coming from Save a Fox Sanctuary's property in the past few months? 

----------------·----· 



LJ_ 
I 







w 
0 0.0275 

1:2,500 
0.055 

0.09 
le 1 

0 0.045 

otoo<-





·O 
0 

~~-
~ 

.. 
,· 

·' 

;,~,·-

~ ·o 
0 
C) 

~ ·. ~--· ,; ::: 
·---~ ·-· -.-. -+•~-.. � """"""'.""'lll~•---"'j ,_,..,.._,.. ·---•-"""'-'""""'"""-f,f~~----1 

'i. ,, 

... , ......... 

~---------



~-8-~ /;2: c3j 
RZ-19-29-5, Create Conservatory 

Map of Subject Property 

r -. -- ---'-,o= 
c:: 
w 
.:., 
.;., 

>. 
Ill 

~ 
"" IP 
I .•----;;-•x, ., ..... , .· ·-· x ·~( 

~~y?;:-::>·X•::~x.., 
':.X...:'xxx'>-x~S'S< 
z s: g _____ _J 

I I Ii I c:: 

:; ·.• _ ~>- _.!t-:-'.-I 

~ f~ lf:t~~'t,; 
-~:_·:?~~- :~-~~ -.:· . -~ 

-~ -~ 
·.:f 

-~ 

N 

A 

Location 

Page 5 of 8 

( 2/1-



-w..~ -- ...... : .. -- x ,,__:__ ::.:~;-· !I' . 
g; 

. '-·-· · ---}I , . · ·-- --- ---- . 
i~~~ ~;-~~:~.-·~; '. J· ~,-ey~,_ . ,•, ' . . ... . :; .•. j. - ~ • . - l}0I! - --~-;-:-1'1··· _- J

ii . . . . :,;,,:· .. ;, ~ ~~g , -~ ' . • ·:: ,., . ~ ~) .. ~.;i f '.ri(la f:,1 l _ .. ,,. - • ;: : , >·:)FT ~. :~ •· ·1: I 
;,,.,J ilt . ' ,~ , I f ,· ' / . . - - ~ ~~i:·. -. ' 'f .lll!refl .,:.;-. '·_~ i -I ~~

_.~\i ~ij\1 •: . • !ll ~- .~ .. I . . / ·~ .. • : --------lil,~ . . .. . II . " -~ -
.,_.=-~ .. Jr: •; · I ~- ~. . , 

,t <-: ·. · .. ·,•:-. :,:-:; ) , I c:a • ~ • 
l 

~ ·. ~ ,, _-.-,, .. ~ .. ;c;~l. ·1· .oom ·•. ~ ~:> '/,f ~~/" a:. M , -:. ~,;.. __ ·._ . ~

00 

-
- f: \ . . .. > ' . .- ·. lAl!1Jt:.IJ .. '. :. ; ut!OOil 

. :"'1.' \ . ',_ - . . ·:;- . ·;-.:. · . -· : . ,: 
. ; 

. - -~ . ,:(....=~~ ... ~-~ 

,, :• _,;.:-,'.C . ! -·, :-, 
~~; ·"> \ . ·--~- +· ·-~-. ~~ ~. · ·• .. ~ ··· -·· -.... :t ~t ;'_ ~ .. 

" • • ,..···· ·. 

-
• . ·. .r..-.-.-dl ~ j \ ·, ~~~ .. ~,-. .. -: ... < :/:. ·: . :;{ A <' 

!,J- ~ ?', . • �. , 
-~-; "1~~-~-: .. ~ . J. -~ ;_.-,. 

, r r=l?3" ~ ·.•· .; .·: .'.· · ... .. , •• ,.-::_. =----LLJl•L · ' 1.:llll ~ . ; ... . ' 

:-- ..... ~".": 

J,J$ar,sh18RM , {' 
• • ··• n r.,""'7 or..r,;r:,= ~ = · •. ,,,, • ~t! ~ cJ~ "ll .Qv • 

ft) 
·. { ·~ _. · @tli8itl)=- : - · ~o . • • . • .. :~orum 

: . ·,;.; [;)!re:f) ~· 
e 

(~'QC).) 
. ' • ,I 
·-· -'!.";. ' r,::.-· - .. ~ . .:. 

.r 

la!IE) 
~ 

',,' . 

;; ;~ 
:'t-· 

rt 
~ .~. B ll!lim ·~ 

• 
F?;:J ~ ~ ' fil!Iid) 
• .• t, :t· 

I.,_ , 

~1 ,-.:._-? 

llal ,; = 
J l (/JJ~ I I I I I 

. , • r'!'- 11••·······••@:Gfl@'~•···· l}0I! _..,-_ 
I ~ • =~ @ 

~ -.· . . CYY!) C!0h" 'i7 . >fil!;Ilfi ' . . ·. ' llt!IEI fIOO:OOm ~ &J fl 
:0 
'_l I 

lY!m ,< i , 11 ,~ ~ ,,.. I 

. 
··•, ..• ll . . @ .-~g 

. 

• 

- . 
•- --

... --4· · .. _::i_ 

.... 'l 

. f .. - r: : ".: •.. 1 

'I, 

,. 
,.,.. __ . 

--~-

 

http:lAl!1Jt:.IJ


I 
Alteroare Key #28630131 

3.197 Ac..re.s 
Metal pal, with plo

C 

lu 
C 
::, 

MW conwr af SE 1/4 of -J 
RE1/4ofSW1/•vf U 
s.dkitl n.-tB-24. 

Found 4• otlllgon CM 
.ru, no namti•• 
b4 wood pDel D. 0.5' So.JU\. 

~ 
50' 

fu.JC, 

NO l INCLUDED 
NOT INCLUDED :C'!n':-~~}i of 

~~~.¼:.of 
-, '\,~ 4• Squm1s CM wilh 

on 1iiufflirluni naa ~ ti:$.-

0 
Metal pol, . conct"St1 bell. 

A 
Bottom �action; -of toW'l!I' 

ttonTI on top, 
{t)l>ici>I) 

~---... t-,.. - -t""""'·-------r;fE- "A '' tvm~ ----------~---=> 
-.! 6J''""'?:r 
10,1' • 611 .65 "!" 

Found 4• 1quon CW wllh 
nu nurnbw'. 

WD"TE 
Shard wd/ l5 

1'7ol- /oeo,_'k} oy, fl,, ( 

Subj£ cf- r red 

H(l..,f('tlUJ?,, :r1vhnf c111().C,{i1f 

ss9•33'3?"£ "'~ 
S89'S2'33"'E t>elic 

NOT INCLUDED 

8'0 

M6'Y/M<J,., $+-a.C~ : 7-
BOl)NDARY SURVEY 
in Section 24, Township 18 Sout~, 

Range 24 East, Lake County, Florida 

Description 
BOQJn ; ot - NbrthtC,lt """'" of th,. Sell- 1/4 of th• North•~•! {/4 cf tht 
Sou)h>;ut 1/4 af (Sktlon 24, T(!W!Ulhlp 18 South, Ran11• 24 East, L""- ' County, 
Florida; run tt,.,,;o Nbnh :89'52'.20" w..t dong tht 'fforth lino. o!.Aold ~th,af\ 
1/4 ~f I/it North .. ~ 1/4 ~l '!ht Soo\hHO! 1/4 a <ltitefl .. of 662.12 t...t lo 
th• fforthWft! com• of lhiSc!,,lheoiit 1/4 of lht ·Nor1h-'!t t/4 al ti!~ Soothwut 
1/4, tb1neo Sooth 00'111'15' Wnt along tho w..t lint •pl •old SoothlO'I( 1/4 of 
!ht -~"°It 1/4 ol the ~west 1 /4 o dletance •of 71.~ r..t thence 
SOulh ~9'5!1'41" E .. ~ l!O.~ fHt \h-,i:,, Sooth- 00:01'1lr W..t, 150.09 ft•~ 
theneo Sooth 139~'3$' E~ 61l.66 ~1 to . tlit East lint of tho South-I 
1/4 of lht Nor1ht011\ 1/4 _of lho Southwest 1/4; tt,-,ce Norih 00'05'20" Eolt 
along ,cld East lln-. W.74 ~ l to tl\1 Paint of Begitnlng, · 

{t1Ncr'4,Ui:m-t"'-1 hm C11W1.573, Pa.a-~ ld!a Caurlly, !'kirt:lo.) 

lhb ~d line np,eserrts .the bounclaty llnL 

8. 

1 
::t 

I 
\I 

found l'.W'TIDlnt of flOl ~ 
ond plaf.e 'l, ~11""'".,t.(l 

1 : 
: 

+ : 
,.[t 
OI ~..-oq~~ 
-: -i§ 

South 1./4 ,ct,m1r of I 
S.Cllon ..... 111-24- \ f 
<4" round CM .ua i 
'PW ct:R 7307'&~ 

Carllfiad to: (CirtjficoliOfl hs llmlt-.1 to p.rtoris/porli• nam� d below) 

Nlcole- OuSok 
CREAlEConiC"'t'Cltory 

That lhl1 arrv.y WCI pr.epotH by ~ or ~~ 1:111 dl_~ct. to~11lon 

::!it!:!:~ ~abo":;~drt,:~~~=:&.. 
~~~P:~:rb~e:b:'e tat . ~ _ .,:~r~-~t~ 
survey end any m0~er3 at \he ~citi'rg the bow&dbry ~ 
actually used and oet'l.spl,d, or~ , · 1Midin. 

-t1.. - · c:7~< ;.. .... 11.hslu; 
BtadJey R. M'"tnntx PlS "559, slat• ~f Florido 

(Sorwy map and "'Port or the copl9!1 the,r110f are. not wlld wlthoot. 
the llgncrture <md th, original teal of a Florlcfa ll~Md 

_ !ln",ll)'DI'" and mapptir.) 

2s Pip. 1111 0.4" NoHti t,t a:iriiw. 

0 

"' ' ~- I C 
::, 

...J • ltASEl>~R ~u,o.. \ Flue., (.) .;ir~~dJf 
:z LJJf'f l:A)([,fl.~15., 

. 
~ I 

GRAPHIC SCALE ~--v·,~-- L J ,_, .•• i 
(,IN~ ) · 

'j 
l inch • SO fl 

N0.15 . 
1: f~- -· . -' ~ lhfVUc.~ori, .f~ lhll ~y 11.«e fumlthtd 

LEGEND 

2. 

~. .. 
.. 

.. 

I = Pijwlil', Polo 
• • c Ir.on $o:4 • 

• _. ~oneJ'il:{~ ~91"1ument 
-ou-- '0"1tfl~.d<I ulllity lines 

li1l • Con~l• pad . 

Sh,:e,et _1_: of _1_ 

S'.QUNDARY SURVEY 
· fo te~n 24, Tewnst-iip 18 South, 
Range ~4 east, Lake County, Florida 

FIB.O "D'A.TE:,No,,,.23, 2019 
Ndlldl~,UIC2,11124.DAT 

sca1.E: 1 .lncfl ._30 FM 
Duslat_AA28630'13,_SK24182.C.DW(;" Drown by. BKM " 0\echd by. 8 


	PZB Minutes 03.04.20
	PZB exhibits 3-4-20




Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		03.04.20 - PZB Minutes Packet.pdf









		Report created by: 

		



		Organization: 

		







[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found no problems in this document.





		Needs manual check: 2



		Passed manually: 0



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 1



		Passed: 29



		Failed: 0







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top



